Minutes

PETITION HEARING - CABINET MEMBER FOR PROPERTY, HIGHWAYS & TRANSPORT



16 October 2024

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre

since the development at Morris Avenue.

	Committee Members Present: Councillor Jonathan Bianco
	LBH Officers Present: Steve Austin, Traffic, Parking, Road Safety and School Travel Team Manager Liz Penny, Democratic Services Officer
32.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 1)
	There were no declarations of interest.
33.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE BUSINESS OF THE MEETING WILL TAKE PLACE IN PUBLIC (Agenda Item 2)
	It was confirmed that all items of business were in Part I and the meeting would be held in public.
34.	TO CONSIDER THE REPORT OF THE OFFICERS ON THE FOLLOWING PETITIONS RECEIVED: (Agenda Item 3)
35.	NORTH WAY, MORRIS AVENUE AND WORRALL LANE, UXBRIDGE - PETITION REQUESTING A REDUCTION IN THE SPEED LIMIT TO 20 MPH (Agenda Item 4)
	The lead petitioner was in attendance and addressed the Cabinet Member highlighting the following points:
	North Way was a short road with only 16 homes;
	There were a number of elderly residents and families with young children living along the road;
	The road was often used as a cut through by dog walkers, those going to the gym and children going to and from school; A large number of delivery vehicles also used North Ways.
	 A large number of delivery vehicles also used North Way; Cars, vans and other larger vehicles often accelerated through the traffic lights which was dangerous and a matter of some concern;
	There had been a number of incidents in the area in the past related to speeding drivers; A 20 male aread limit would circuit and the right.
	 A 20 mph speed limit would significantly reduce the risk; A traffic survey and traffic calming measures were requested – a 20 mph zone and speed bumps were possible options.
	The Cabinet Member informed petitioners that he was well acquainted with North Way and the surrounding area. It was acknowledged that the area had changed significantly since the development at Morris Avenue.

The Cabinet Member advised that, with the exception of those outside schools during hours of operation, he was not in favour of 20 mph zones since they were not enforceable by the Council. It was acknowledged that speed tables were a useful tool but it was noted that they could also lead to an increase in noise and the emission of fumes; particularly when heavy vehicles passed over them. It was agreed that the first step would be to conduct traffic surveys to gather useful data which would then inform the decision-making process thereafter. The petitioners were invited to suggest the preferred location for the speed surveys to be conducted.

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet Member for Property, Highways and Transport:

- 1. Met with petitioners and listened to their request to reduce the speed limit to 20 mph; and
- 2. Asked officers to commission independent 24/7 speed and traffic surveys on North Way at a location agreed with the petitioners.

36. MINET DRIVE, HAYES - PETITION REQUESTING TRAFFIC CALMING MEASURES (Agenda Item 5)

The lead petitioner was not in attendance but had submitted a written representation which was read out for the attention of the Cabinet Member. Key points highlighted included:

- The petition requested the installation of speedbumps on Minet Drive to address the issue of speeding vehicles, especially during evening and nighttime hours;
- Residents were concerned about the safety of children, senior citizens, and all residents due to the dangerous environment created by speeding vehicles;
- A recent high-speed chase in front of 28 Minet Drive had nearly caused severe damage and potentially fatal injuries;
- The presence of small children at 28, 30, and 36 Minet Drive made the risk of speeding vehicles a constant source of anxiety;
- Speedbumps were seen as an essential measure to protect safety and restore peace to the neighbourhood;
- The noise from speeding vehicles, especially at night, was disruptive and distressing for families with small children;
- There had been a noticeable rise in stolen car incidents on Minet Drive, adding to the sense of insecurity in the neighbourhood;
- Senior citizens living on Minet Drive faced discomfort and hazards due to speeding vehicles;
- The petitioner urged the Council to prioritise the installation of speedbumps to improve safety and reduce criminal activity.

Ward Councillor Raju Sansarpuri was in attendance in support of petitioners but chose not to address the Cabinet Member so as to not repeat the concerns already raised by his fellow Hayes Town Ward Councillors in their written submissions.

A written submission from Ward Councillor Peter Curling in support of petitioners was read out for the attention of the Cabinet Member. Key points raised included:

- Councillor Curling had represented the area for 14 years and highlighted the problem of speeding traffic on Minet Drive and surrounding roads, which had increased in recent years;
- The roads were narrow and had originally been built for horse and cart traffic.
 Residents had suggested lower speed limits or a one-way system to address the issues caused by speeding motorists;
- Speed humps could create problems such as noise, flashing headlights, and issues for emergency services. However, modern traffic tables could address some of these issues:
- Councillor Curling supported the residents' petition for traffic calming measures and urged the Cabinet Member and highways officers to consider a scheme that met the residents' desires.

A written submission from Ward Councillor Janet Gardner had also been received and was read out for the attention of the Cabinet Member. Key points raised included:

- Councillor Gardner was in support of the petition due to traffic speeding concerns on the estate, which had the potential to cause accidents and damage property or people;
- Councillor Gardner had frequently visited the area and had found the speed of drivers frightening;
- Drivers often used the end of the road near the 312 bus access point to engage in antisocial behaviour in the evenings before speeding back towards Coldharbour Lane:
- Residents' expected the Council to implement measures to ensure their safety and the safety of their properties.

In response to requests for clarification from the Cabinet Member it was confirmed that concerns had previously been raised regarding Hunters Grove but nothing in respect of Minet Drive. The Cabinet Member therefore considered it advisable to undertake a wider survey of the roads in the local area.

With regard to the issues raised by petitioners and Ward Councillors in respect of antisocial behaviour, car theft and speeding, it was confirmed that these were police matters which were not within the scope of the Council's remit. Ward Councillors were encouraged to raise these issues with the local police.

The Cabinet confirmed that he was in support of traffic surveys being undertaken in the wider area to establish the gravity of the problem. Councillor Sansarpuri was requested to liaise with his fellow Ward Councillors to suggest preferred locations for the installation of traffic speed strips.

RESOLVED: That the Cabinet Member for Property, Highways & Transport:

	 Heard from petitioners and Ward Councillors and listened to their request for Traffic Calming Measures on Minet Drive, Hayes; and Asked officers to commission independent 24/7 speed and traffic surveys on Minet Drive and the surrounding roads at locations to be agreed with Ward Councillors.
	The meeting, which commenced at 7.02 pm, closed at 7.32 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Liz Penny on epenny@hillingdon.gov.uk. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.